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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

1. Question:  Section J:  Has the FAA identified the peak operating times for each site that, from a safety aspect, requires dual staffing and, if so what are those times, by site? 

Answer:  The FAA has not identified peak operating times at any FCT sites 
that from a safety aspect would require dual staffing.  

2. Question:  Page J-13:  Verify the operating hours for Waterbury CT. site.  SIR only shows a five hours operational day. 

Answer:  The operating hours for Waterbury, CT are 0600 – 2100.

3. Question:  Page l-14, L21.1.3:  Do the Oral Presentation slides count as part of the Technical Proposal Page limit.

Answer:  No, the Oral Presentation slides will not count as part of the Technical Proposal page limit.   See Amendment No. 001 

4. Question:  Page L-17, L.21.3.5:  Please provide the missing text. 

Answer:  There is no missing text.   L.21.3.5 continues on the next page (page L.18) 
5. Question: Attachment J-6:  When will we get the CBAs for all the union sites?  The SIR only shows CBA for Area 2, are these the only union sites?

Answer:  See Amendment No. 001

6. Question:  PageL-19, L.22.4: Do the resumes count against the 50 pages limit on the Management Plan?  Do we have to submit resumes for each site Facility Manager?

Answer: The resumes will not count against the 50 pages limitation on the Management Plan.  If the Offeror consider his/her site Facility Manager as part of their management team, then the Offeror is required to submit resumes for the Facility Manager.  See Amendment No. 001. 

7. Question:  Page L-10, L.18.3.1:  Please confirm that we are allowed to identify our company/team in the narrative text of the proposal as long as we do not that data in the page headers and footers.

Answer:   See Amendment No. 001
8. Question: The SIR recommends site visits and for the proposer to contact the current contractor for arrangements.  Who are the current contractors and what is their phone numbers?  There is not much time for the site visits, so this information is imperative to get quickly. 

Answer: The FAA will post within the next two weeks, the date, time and location of a typical site for a site visit.  One site in each of the six areas will be identified. 

9. Question:  Are all of the sites contracted sites presently, or are some FAA sites? 

Answer:  All but one of the sites in the FCT program are currently contracted sites. 
10. Question:   Is the current contractors responsible for the maintenance of equipment as per this SOW?

Answer: The current contractors are not responsible for maintenance of equipment. 

11. Question:  What processes does the FAA have in place to ensure that new bidders are provided reasonable access to FCT sites by the current contractor?

Answer:  See response to Question No. 8 above. 

12. Question:  Where in the SIR document does it stipulates that Kalaeola is excluded from the proposals, which the FAA are seeking from potential contractor organizations?

Answer: Kalaeola is not excluded from the proposed sites included in the SIR
13. Question:  I have received your solicitation and conducted a brief review.  Paragraph L.23.1 states that past performance must include a “minimum of three contracts which demonstrate the Offeror’s past experience” is this limited to 3 past contracts that were dealing strictly with Air Traffic Controllers, or can it be a mix of Air Traffic Controllers and management of geographically separate sites?

Answer: Paragraph L.23 states …”each Offeror shall submit written information pertaining to relevant experience involving similar scope of work as addressed in Section C. …A minimum of three contracts, which demonstrate the Offeror’s past experience, shall be identified.

14. Question:  Since there are only three contractors who presently have most of the 229 sites listed, it will be difficult to find competitors that have 3 Air Traffic Controller contracts.  
Answer:  No response required.  
15. Question:  An offeror must prepare site specific plans for training, security, and staffing.  An offeror must have information on which sites are staffed under a CBA.  The information is to be reflected in an offeror's written technical and oral presentation.  FAA's evaluation captures the extent to which an offeror demonstrates site specific knowledge.  Yet, in attempting to arrange these site visits, this offeror is advised that none shall be arranged.  How does FAA plan to reconcile its requirements for site specific knowledge and the corresponding ability to develop a fair and reasonable pricing for the work? 

Answer: See response to Question No. 8 above and Question No. 68 below.  

16.  Question:  How is the offeror to gain knowledge of the seniority of staff (at specific sites) as to earned vacation that must be paid and figured into a pricing plan for backfill manpower?

Answer: According to the Service Contract Act, the incumbent contract is required to provide the seniority list not less than 10 days prior to the completion of the contract.  This will be made available at contract award or shortly thereafter.   
17. Question:  How does FAA plan to ensure competitive pricing that is truly fair and reasonable and a best value acquisition when one current contractor with at least 80 sites has knowledge of the sites, knowledge of the pricing that should be constructed for vacation time according to seniority and/or CBA provisions?  

Answer: See FAA response above regarding seniority staffing.  All of the sites were identified as to the specific wage requirements or where applicable CBA.   All applicable CBAs are posted on the web site. 

18. Question:  This cadre of information elevates the incumbent contractor to a position of having knowledge that other competitors is unable to obtain through no lack of commitment to site visits but through the operation of control such that the offeror is unable to gain access to the information.

Answer:    Site visits are being made available to Offerors. See FAA response to Question No. 8. 

19. Question:  Paragraph H.26 of the SIR states that "Before employment of any subcontractor/consultant under this contract, the Contractor shall obtain the agreement of the Contracting Officer."  It is our assumption that, subcontractors may be included in our proposal and that if we are selected for award, that the selection and award would mean that our subcontractors are approved with the award of the contract.  Is that correct?

Answer:  Yes

20. Question: Section C.3.1.2 stipulates the minimum number of personnel to be assigned to a tower.  Is this the number of people to be assigned or the number of FTE’s to be assigned?

Answer: The minimum number of personnel in this section refers to people not FTE’s.

21. Question: Section C.3.1.6 establishes the requirement for the Tower Manager to attend meetings including HUB meeting.  What is the average number of meetings per year will the Manager be required to attend?

Answer: The average number of meetings will vary from site to site.  See Amendment No. 001

22. Question:  Section C.3.17 outlines the requirement to designate a FSC.  Can the designee be the Tower Manager?

Answer:  Yes, however, the Offerors may designate whomever the Offeror chooses as a FSC. 

23. Question:  Section C.5.1 discusses GFE.  Does the GFE include a computer and printer for administrative use? 

Answer: No.  The GFE does not include a computer and printer for administrative use. 

24. Question:  Section F.11 Type of Contract it is stated….The resultant contract is a Firm Fixed Price contract with variances established for wage rate determination adjustments.  With this statement as a background is it the FAA’s intention to have the Bidders not include estimates of Direct Labor increases for each of the option years since the wage increases will be mandated by the Department of Labor.

Answer:  See Amendment No. 001.
25. Question:  Section J, Attachment J-3 Site Specific Information list Hours of Operation and Hours of Weather Reporting.  Several of the listed facilities list the hours of Weather reporting outside the hours of tower operations.  ((0215, 0218, 0253, 0256, 0268 and 0279).  Is this an error or is the contractor expected to take the hourly observation?  Also 0249 does not indicate anything for Weather Reporting. 

Answer: Weather reporting for sites 0215, 0218, 0253, 0256, 0268 and 0279 are the same as the hours of operation.  Weather reporting for site 0249, Cecil Field, is the same as the hours of operation.

26. Question:  Section J, Attachment J-6 Wage Determination….This section is divided into six (6) Areas with separate lists illustrating the facility name, it’s city and state and county as well as the relevant Wage Determination and the Revision applicable at this time. When reviewing the listed Area’s, it appears that only Area 2 has Collective Bargaining Agreements in place.   Will this entire Attachment J-6 be reviewed to verify that Area 2 is the only Area with Collective Bargaining Agreements in effect?

Answer:   See FAA response to Question No. 5.
27. Question:  Section L.3b Questions – In the second paragraph of this section it indicates that questions must be submitted to the Contracting Officer in writing, not later than 3:00 p.m. EDT on April 26, 2004.  In this same paragraph one sentence later it states that…. No questions will be accepted after the pre-proposal conference.  This conference is scheduled for the week of April 11, 2004 according to Section L.2, Projected Milestone Schedule.  Please indicate which deadline is correct for the submission of questions.  

Answer:  See Amendment No. 001

28.  Question:  In Section L.11 the Solicitation indicates that the FAA may use a support contractor to assist in the review of the proposals.  Will the support contactor employed by the FAA be barred from competing for work under this FCT solicitation?

Answer:  The company that employs the support contractor contracted by the FAA will not be submitting a proposal for the FCT SIR. 

29. Question:  Section L.16.1 discusses the evaluation process but does not indicate the value of each evaluation.   Will the evaluations be scored and will the scores be used to rank submitted Offers?

Answer:   The evaluation s will be conducted in accordance with Section M of the SIR.  
30. Question:  Section L.25 – In the first line of this section reference is made that the Offeror shall furnish in Volume IV, audited financial statement….. Is the reference to Volume IV a typographical error and should it read Volume V?

Answer:   Volume IV is a typographical error and it should read as Volume V. 
31. Question:  Section L.25 – Will a letter of support from the Offeror’s Bank be sufficient documentation to illustrate that the offeror has sufficient funding available to accommodate the possible governmental delays in receiving payments from the government. 

Answer:  A letter from an Offeror’s bank, which specifically states that it will meet the requirement of Section L.25 and L.12 will be sufficient documentation.  

32. Question:  It is possible for each offeror to receive a copy of watchbills or operating positions at each site, and how and when are they combined?

Answer: Information on watch schedules or operating positions at each site will not be made available to offerors.
33. Question: Can we get a copy of the areas of responsibility for each position? 

Answer: No. A copy of the areas of responsibility for each position at each site is not available.

34. Question:  Is the ATM normally combined with the Training Chief? 

Answer: There are no normal staffing combinations in FCTs.  Sites are staffed in accordance with staffing plans submitted by offerors and approved by FAA.

35. Question:  What equipment is available at each station, so we can establish a training plan?

Answer:  There is not a list of available equipment at each location.  Towers are generally equipped with basic equipment necessary to conduct VFR tower operations.  See FAA Order 7210.54A. 

36. Question:  What are the controller’s weather reporting requirements? 

Answer:  Controllers at sites where weather reporting is required must be LAWRS certified.  

37. Question:  Will the CBI courses be made available to us after the contract is awarded?

Answer: Required CBI courses will be made available after award.

38. Question:  Are there airfield responsibilities above normal ATC functions? 

Answer: Controller responsibilities are restricted to those duties that are directly relate to ATC functions as stated in the SIR.

39. Question:  Where will the HUB user meetings be held (C.3.1.6) (Contractor to meet own travel costs)

Answer: The location of Hub meetings will vary depending on the location of the Hub facility.  Contractors will meet their own travel costs.  See Amendment No. 001.

40. Question:  Where is the nearest FAA HUB facility that provides testing/certification/training for the Area 6 towers (C3.7.4)?

Answer: The Hub facility that provides testing/certification/training for Area 6 towers is located in Honolulu, HI.

41. Question:  Are there FAA-specific systems that must be used to report accidents/incidents and collect applicable data (or can the contractor elect to use their own system that meets the information/timeliness requirements) (C.3.9)?

Answer: Accident/Incident reporting shall be in accordance with FAA Order 8020.11, Aircraft Accident and Incident Notification Investigating, and Reporting.  See C.3.9 of the SIR. 

42. Question:  What FAA equipment and property is provided at each Area 6 location (C.3.16.3)?

Answer:  See response to Question 35 above. 

43. Question:  Is each of the Area 6 facilities FAA owned or leased or airport sponsored (C.3.16.1-2 &C.4.7.2)?

Answer: All FCT sites are either FAA owned or leased, or sponsor owned.  The ownership of the facility has no direct impact on the actions or responsibilities required of the offeror

44. Question:  [The Facility Training Program should be “administered in a uniform and standardized manner”] is the contractor required to develop a FCT-wide (FAA) model, or does it only need to meet the requirements of the FAA (e.g. FAR Part 91, FAA order etc) and implement its own program that is uniform and standard across its contract area (C.3.7)? 

Answer: The contractor is required to implement a training plan that meets the requirements outlined in section C.3.7, and that is uniform across its contract area. 

45. Question:  FAA Order 7210.54 (Operation Administration of Contract Towers) – paragraph 11A – FAA providing local area knowledge packets – Are these packets available prior to award of the contract?  If so, how can this information be obtained? 

Answer: The local area knowledge packets referred to in FAA Order 7210.54 are provided in conjunction with the conversion of FAA staffed towers to contract operation.  It is not applicable to this solicitation.

46. Question:  Traffic counts (site specific) – Does the FAA have any hour-by-hour count or daily movement statistics available for Area 6 towers?  If so how can this information be obtained? (J-3 Attachment)

Answer: No.  This data is not available but see our response to Question No. 68.

47. Question:  FAA Order 7050.1 (QA program) – Do any of the Area 6 towers conduct RSAT (runway safety action team) programs?  If so, is the successful contractor required to adopt/maintain the programs of the previous contractor? 

Answer: All towers are subject to the provisions of FAA Order 7050.1.  Successful offerors will be required to comply with the Order.  No, the successful contractor is not required to adopt/maintain the program of the previous contractor. 

48. Question:  What local station documents (in addition to FAA supplied documents) are we required to provide before start-up (e.g. local ATC operational instructions)?

Answer: Any required local documents will be provided to the Offeror during the phase-in/phase-out period. 

49. Question:  Do all persons performing services under the contract (e.g. management, QA, documentation, etc) need to be citizens of the US (H.11 3.14-3)?

Answer: No.  Please carefully read Section H. 11.2.14-3(a)-(b)(1)-(3).

50. Question:  At what point does the requirement to be a US citizen stop (in terms of how far removed from the operations/performance of services – e.g. can US employee report to a foreign based manager or must all US staff effectively be a stand-alone from the foreign country)?

Answer:  Will be answered in the next set of questions and answers.
51. Question:  What type of weather reporting system is in place at each tower?  (i.e. Are the limited aviation weather reporting stations (LAWRS) automatic/augmented/manual)

Answer: The type of weather reporting system varies from site to site however, controllers at sites where weather reporting is required must be LAWRS certified.  

52. Question: What leave/service liability would we be liable for if we were to employ staff previously employed by a contractor to do similar work (H.27.1)? 

Answer: See Section H.26, page H-15, (f) Successor Contracts and Section H. 27.1 which states…”if the contractor employs without a break in service, any service employee who was employed by it’s predecessor contractor for similar work at the same location, the contractor in computing the employee’s “year of service” shall include all continuous service for the predecessor contractor subsequent to the later of the following dates: (1) the date of employment by the predecessor contractor; or (2) if, while employed by the predecessor contractor, the employee had an anniversary date or dates on which the employee became entitled to vacation benefits, the most recent of such employee’s full vacation benefit on such anniversary date even though during part of the “year of service” the employee had been employed by the predecessor contractor.

53. Question: Will the FSP require contractor investment in additional (not FAA supplied) equipment or employment of additional persons (e.g. security guards) to meet the requirements of the Facility Security Plan (FSP) (C.3.17.5)

Answer: No

54. Question:  FAA Servicing Security Element (SSE) – How long (average) does it take the SSE to provide authorization for a contract employee to begin work (H.10) 3.14-2 (f))?

Answer: No more than 14 days.
55.  Question:  Is it necessary for all contractor employees that have access to service information (e.g. management, documentation and finance staff) to have to be security cleared by the FAA?  Is this process different to that applicable to those that require unescorted access to FAA facilities? 

Answer:  Yes, any contract employee who has access to FAA resources, information, or facilities requires an investigation.  No, the same is required for those requiring unescorted access.
56. Question:  Can foreign nationals (non-ATC employees – e.g. documentation, finance etc) perform services under the contract?  What are the security requirements applicable to these staff? 

Answer: Yes, as long as they meet the 3-year residency requirement (lived in the U.S. 3 of the last 5 years).  See Section H.11 - 3.14-3 FOREIGN NATIONALS AS CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEES (JULY 2002)

57. Question:  Is a successor contractor required to pay or compensate it predecessor for services, training etc. provided during the phase-in (transition) process (C.3.14)?  Similarly, can we charge a successor for activities, training etc provided as part of the phase-out process? 

Answer:  No, the successor contractor is not required to pay the predecessor contractor for services during the phase in process.  During the phase-out process the successor contractor cannot charge for activities associated in the phase-out of the process.
58. Question:   Section L.18.3.3.2 states that 11 x 17 inch paper will be acceptable for graphics, tables and diagrams as long as it folds to 8-1/2 x 11.  A smaller type size than 12 point is acceptable for graphics, tables and diagrams as long as the information portrayed remains easily readable.

Does this pertain to all graphics, tables and diagrams (both the 11 x 17 inch paper and the smaller type size font than 12 point) or does it just pertain to Briefing Charts as referenced in the first sentence of this same paragraph?

Answer:   The 11 x 17-inch paper and the smaller type size font than 12 point pertain to all graphics, tables and diagrams.  
59.  Question:  SIR number DTFAWA-04-R-00014 is the CWO SIR number.  Please change the SIR number to read DTFAWA-04-R-01590. 

Answer:   No change is required.  DTFAWA-04-R-00014 refers to the Aviation Insurance Liability SIR.  
60. Question: Section L.18.3.3 Paragraph 3 talks about the Briefing Charts and the allowance of the use of 11x17 foldouts.  We assume it is OK to use foldouts in the proposal as well, but any 8-1/2 by 11 page that contains text will count for a separate page.  Is that correct?

Answer:  The Offerors may use the 11x17 foldouts in the technical proposal, if they choose to do so but it will be counted against the page count.

61. Question:   Section H.33, This clause would require the Contractor to indemnify and hold harmless the Government for operation performed under the contract with the exception of negligence by the Government, which is an onerous requirement.  This implies that the Contractor must hold the Government harmless even if the Contractor was not negligent in performance under the contract. 

Would the Government consider a change to “Contractor to indemnify and hold Government harmless for loss arising out of the negligence of the Contractor”?

Answer:  No.  The government has considered, and Section H.33 clause will remain the same as what is currently in the SIR.

62. Question:   Section L.3 appears to contain a contradiction.  The first sentence in the second paragraph states “…questions must be submitted to the Contracting Officer in writing, not later than 3:00 p.m. EDT on April 16, 2004.”  The last sentence in the same paragraph states:  “No questions will be accepted after the pre-proposal conference.  Can contractors submit questions after the pre-proposal conference? 

Answer:   See our response to Question 27 and Amendment No. 001. 

63. Question:   Section J-6 - When will the CBAs for Area 1, 2 and 3 which were formally requested on April 2, 2004 be made available?

Answer:   See response to Question No. 005.  See Amendment No. 1

64. Question:   Section J-6 – When will the wage determinations noted in the SIR as “to be provided” be made available? 


Answer:   See Amendment No. 001
65. Question:  Several determinations specified in the SIR are not available on the (DOL) web site.  Are the revision numbers correct in the SIR?  If they are correct, when will the revisions be available on the DOL web site? 

Answer:   See Amendment No. 001. 
66. Question:  Section J-6, Wage Determination1994-226, Revision 12, Area 1, CLIN No. 112, for Worchester Municipal. 

Worchester, Worcester County, MA:  The wage determination states: “Excluding the cities and towns in Worcester.”  Then it goes on to further list the names of cities in Worcester County, which includes Worcester.  Please clarify. 

Also the SIR references “Worchester” not Worcester.  Which is correct?

Answer:   Worcester is correct.   Worcester is included in the identified wage determination per DOL.

67. Question: Page J-13, Are the hours of operations for Waterbury, CT (CLIN 134) shown as 1600 - 2100 correct?
Answer:  No. The hours of operation for Waterbury, CT, are 0600 – 2100.
68. Question:  Pages J-29 to J-31, What was the 2003 traffic count, by category, for each of the following towers?
Denton, TX (CLIN 278)



Olive Branch, MS (CLIN 279)



Greenville Donaldson Center (CLIN 281)



New Smyrna Beach, FL (CLIN 282)



Columbus Golden Triangle, MS (CLIN 283)



Greenwood LeFlore, MS (CLIN 284)



Ormond Beach, FL (CLIN 285
Answer:  This information can be found at the Airport Summary and Activity Data web site, http://www.gcr1.com/5010web.
69. Question:  Page J-32, How often do special events that require extra staffing occur at Cincinnati Municipal, Cincinnati, OH (CLIN 0304)?
Answer:  There are no special events occurring at Cincinnati Municipal, Cincinnati, OH (CLIN) 0304, that require “extra” staffing.
70. Question:  Section L.18.3.3.4 Paragraph discusses page limit for Volume II - Technical Proposal and says that "page count does not include the Staffing Plans and Sample Schedules".  The Oral Presentation is Section C of Volume II.  During the last proposal in 1999, the "Oral Presentation Briefing Package" was excluded from this page count by Amendment 8.  Since the Oral Presentation is time limited by other paragraphs, will this paragraph be amended to "not count" the pages of the Oral Presentation Package in the Volume II page count?

Answer:  See response to Question No. 3 above. 
71. Question:  Section H does not contain the old paragraph "ADHERENCE TO PERFORMANCE LEVEL" to within 97-103%.  It has been a very important provision in controlling staffing at the proposed levels.  However, it could be improved by making it applicable to an entire Area contract versus on a site by site basis.  Can we expect that this issue will be addressed as in the old contract in an Amendment to Section H of this SIR?

Answer:  See Amendment No. 001.

72. Question:  Section L.21.1.2 Technical Implementation Plans - states that "Each offeror shall submit the following technical implementation plans in accordance with Section C of the SIR: "The Security Plan is listed with the other plans, however, Section C.3.17.5 states: "FSPs must be developed within 120 days after contract award."  Section M.3 Evaluation Factors list it as a sub-element of the Written Proposal to be scored as does M.4 Technical Evaluation.  Can we expect the requirement to submit a Security Plan within 120 days after award to prevail and that the security plan will not be part of the proposal submission?

Answer:  See Amendment No. 001

73. Question:  C.3.1.1 states that: "The contractor may also enter into an agreement with an entity not a party to the contract to provide ATC services during hours not required by the FAA approved staffing plan.  The FAA will not be liable for any of the staffing costs associated with such work, but the insurance the Government is providing under XXX will be available to the contractor for work performed during those hours."  We interpret this to mean that the insurance covers this situation without the customer incurring additional insurance cost -- is this correct?

Answer:   See Amendment No. 001.
74. Question:  C.3.13.1 states that the contractor will submit a monthly Area Facility Report.  Because of Union Agreements, personnel in Areas 1 and 2 are paid on a two-week schedule, making the number of pay periods 26 versus 24.  A monthly report splits a week between two reports.  We have been permitted to make 13 each "4-week" reports in the existing contract.  Can the contract be changed to allow for this requirement?

Answer: The requirement for the submission of a monthly Area Facility Report will remain in the SIR.  

75. Question:  L.19.1.2  Is the CEC code the same as a company’s D&B number?

Answer: Yes, CEC is the same as a company’s Dun and Bradstreet Number. 
76. Question:  L.21.1.1  Staffing Plans Section 1 states that the offeror shall provide staffing numbers for both supervisory and non-supervisory personnel.  Is the definition of supervisor to be taken from Section H.28 where a supervisor has to devote at least 80% of his time to supervisory duties or does the FAA want an FTE for the site manager as well as the ATC’s?

Answer:  Will be answered in the next set of questions and answer.
77. Question:   L.23.7 states that each offeror is required to provide the past performance questionnaire to points-of-contact for each contract referenced.  In Section L.23.1 it requires a minimum of three contracts demonstrating the Offeror’s past experience as well as a supplemental list of all commercial and federal contracts awarded to the Offeror within the past 5 years.  Does the FAA want the questionnaires sent only to the three primary references or to all references included on the supplemental list of contracts awarded within the past 5 years?

Answer:  The FAA requires a minimum of three contracts pertaining to relevant experience involving similar scope of work as addressed in Section C of the SIR.   It is for the Offeror to decide how many questionnaires to send out in order for the FAA to receive the minimum three required questionnaires.  
78. Question:   L.25  The offeror shall provide audited financial statements.  Our firm’s financial statements are not audited, but are compiled and reviewed by an outside CPA firm.  Is this acceptable?  If not, will the offeror be able to submit the financial statements that are available at this time and request audits from the CPA firm with those audited financials provided as soon as they are completed?  The last RFP required only financial statements, not audited financial statements, thus there has never been a requirement for audited financial statements.

Answer: See Amendment 001.

79. Question:  L.2 Projected milestone schedule shows the start date as September 1, 2004.  Should an incumbent contractor bid use this start date or a start date of October 1, 2004?  

Answer:  All Offerors proposing on the FCT SIR shall use the September 1 start date for contract award. 

80. Question:  Is the base year 13 months?

Answer:   The base year is 13 months.

81. Question: H.24 provides that before employment of any subcontractor/consultant under this contract, the Contractor shall obtain the written approval of the Contracting Officer.  Does the submission of a proposal that includes subcontractors and is selected by the FAA as the winning proposal under this SIR constitute approval of the Contracting Officer for the subcontractors included in that proposal?

Answer:  The Contracting Officer’s approval is granted if the proposal that includes subcontractor(s) is selected for contract award. 

82.  Question:  Is Subcontracting allowed and approved by the FAA? 

Answer:  If an Offeror submit a subcontracting plan as part of the Offeror’s proposal, the FAA will review the Offeror proposal in accordance with the SIR.  

83. Question:   Section L.22.5 does not mention any reference to "subcontracting" unlike the parallel paragraph L.19.1.2 of the previous RFP.  In addition, references were made in L.19.1.6 as well as L.30.3.3.2.6 regarding pricing in the previous RFP.  If a contractor intends to subcontract, how is it to be addressed in the management plan and how should it be addressed in the cost proposal?

Answer:  If the Offeror intends to subcontract, the Offeror shall include in its management proposal how the Offeror plans to manage any proposed subcontract operation.  The Offeror shall include resume of the proposed subcontractor management team, if applicable.  The same instructions outlined for the prime is applicable to the subcontractor and the subcontractor shall submit it price proposal directly to the FAA.
84. Question:  Section L.3.b.  states that questions must be submitted to the CO no later than 4/26/2004.  It also states that no questions will be accepted after the pre-proposal conference which is scheduled for the week of April 11th.  What is the correct deadline for questions?

Answer:   See our response to Question No. 27 and Amendment No. 001.  
85.  Question:  ATTACHMENT J-6, WAGE DETERMINATION matrix does not indicate that a Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) is in effect at many locations where wages are in fact covered by and determined by an approved CBA.  Will the list of sites be amended to correctly identify the sites which are covered by CBA’s instead of wage determinations?  Will the CBA’s be issued to the bidders?

Answer:  See Amendment No. 001 

86. Question:  Section J-3, List of Attachments—Several of the facility Hours of Operation are different from the present Hours of Operation.  Are the SIR hours purposely changed or will the hours of operation be amended to show the current hours of operation?

Answer:  See Amendment No. 001

87.  Question:   Section J-3, List of Attachments—In the SIR several of the facilities indicate Hours of Weather Reporting Services Hours as NONE.  Weather Reporting Services are presently being provided at many of these facilities.  Are the SIR hours purposely changed?

Answer:  See Amendment No. 001
88. Question:    H.12 3.14-4, (f)---states--Each contract employee, during all times of on-site performance at the air traffic control tower shall prominently display his/her current and valid identification card on the front portion of his/her body between the neck and waist.   However, FAA Order 1600.69, para 313, a, (1),(b)--- states---FCT employees who are not issued ID media are exempt from this requirement, but the facility manager must maintain a roster of regularly assigned personnel for SSE review.  Some difficulty has been encountered in getting some regions to issue ID Badges.  Will the controllers be required to procure and display identification cards?  

Answer:   The controllers will be required to obtain and display identification cards/badges issued by the government in accordance with H.12.3.14-4.   
89. Question:   Section L Sample Table B of Cost Worksheets has a line item for Sunday differential.  However, per the current applicable Wage Determinations Sunday differential is reserved for the weather observer labor categories.  We encourage the payment of the Sunday differential to the controller personnel. This has historically been in effect for FAA controllers. Does the FAA intend that Sunday differential also be paid to Air Traffic Controllers?

Answer:  No.  See Amendment No. 001. 

90. Question:   The current RFP does not provide for an annual escalation rate other than the DOL WD Adjustments.  The previous RFP in Section L.20.3.3.2.2 stated that the Contractor shall include an escalation factor in its labor rates for all option years and provided the DRI wage and salary escalation factor for service employees.  To maintain employee satisfaction and high morale, annual wage escalations are important.  Will the FAA be including this provision and the corresponding escalation factor in this RFP?

Answer:   Yes.  In Amendment 001,The FAA has revised L.24 to require Offerors to include escalation of 3.2 applicable to the personnel who will be subject to the Service Contract Act.  (Global Insight, Inc. (formerly known as Data Resources, Inc.) projects that an Employee Cost Index covering white-collar workers will increase by an average of about 3.2 percent per year over the period of performance of the contract.)
91. Question:    At the Pre-Proposal conference, April 20, 2004, the question was asked whether reviewed financial statements were acceptable in lieu of audited financial statements.

Answer:  See response to Question No. 78 above. 

92. Question:    At the Pre-Proposal conference, April 20, 2004, the question was asked whether financial statements were to be provided for both the prime contractor and any proposed subcontractors.

Answer:    See Amendment No. 001.  

93. Question:  At the Pre-proposal conference, April 20, 2004, the question was asked whether in lieu of the audited financial statement, is financial statement that is reviewed and accompanied by a letter by our CPA sufficient to satisfy the requirement? I think the technical phraseology would be: Is a "complied" or "reviewed" financial sufficient to satisfy the requirement for the financial statement?

Answer:   See response to Question No. 78 above. 
94. Question:  At the Pre-Proposal conference, April 20, 2004, the question was asked, can we get hourly traffic count from the regional POC’s. 

Answer:   Hourly traffic count is not available.  However, see response to Question No. 68 above. 

95. Question:  If the CBA says:  Employees entitled to existing company benefits,” How do we find out what the “existing company” benefits” are?   Since we are required by the SCA to pay the same benefits.

Answer:  Will be answered in the next set of questions and answers.  
96. Question:  The Pre-Bid meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, April 20, 2004.  Under Section L, page L-2 is stated that “all questions or comments are due by 3:00 PM EDT on April 26, 2004.  It is also stated that “no questions will be accepted after the Pre-Proposal Conference.  Please clarify. 

Answer:   See response to Question No. 27 above. 

97. Question:  Section L.18.3.1 severely restricts the identity of the offeror being used in the proposal.  The required content of each proposal section will make the offeror’s name readily apparent, but the restriction of this paragraph served to negate effective communication of a company’s experience and capability and will deprive FAA of valuable information.  May we use the name of our company throughout our proposal? 

Answer:   Yes, the name of the Offeror may be used throughout the proposal including Technical Proposal.   See Amendment No. 001
98. Question: L.18.3.4.  states that the page limit for Volume II – Technical Proposal is 75 pages.  Staffing Plans and Sample Schedules are not included in the page count, but since the Oral Presentation is part of Volume II, do these pages count as part of the total?   Also, will the Table of Contents pages for Volume II and Volume III count against the page count limitations?

Answer:  See response to Question No. 3. Table of Contents pages will not be included in the page count limitation.  See Amendment No. 001

99. Question:  Section C.3.1.1 refers to “requirements specified in Subsection 3.1.1.  Is this the correct cross-reference? 

Answer: The cross reference stated in the SIR is subsection C 3.1.3. and is correct.

100. Question C.3.17.3 states “The contractor is required to implement a Facility Security Management Program (FSMP) for each FCT that meets the administrative facility security protective measures and requirements described in FAA Order 1600.69, FAA Facility Security Management Program, dated September 12, 2003, to include those specifically identified for FCTs in Change 1”.  Page J-5, Note shows FAA Order 1600.69, FAA Facility Security Management Program as an order that will be distributed after contract award.  Will the order that is distributed after contract award be the order and change 1 specified in C.2.17.3?


Answer:  Yes

101. Question:  Section L.12.1.2, Section 5 requires a Security Plan to be submitted with the Technical Proposal and refers to “the requirements in Section 3.17.   Should this reference instead be to C.3.17?  Section C.3.17.4 states that Facility Security Plans must be completed 120 days after contract award.  Pleas clarify. 


Answer:  See Amendment No. 001. 

102. Question:   It appears that part of H.25 is missing.  In addition the previous reference to the Federal Acquisition Regulations part has been eliminated, but not replaced with a specific citation from the AMS regulations.  Please clarify. 

Answer: No.  Nothing is missing.  The applicable AMS contract cost/price principles and procedures are found in the FAA Pricing Guide. 

103. Question:  On pages H-13 through H-21, the paragraph numbering/lettering scheme seems to have broken down.  For example should H.26 (C)(V) be H.26 (C)(1) and H.27 (C) (VI) be H.26 (C) (2). 

Answer: Pages H-13 through H-21, the paragraph numbering/lettering scheme is in order. 

104. Question:  What is the difference between the organization chart requirement of L.22.1 and L.22.2? 

Answer: See Amendment No. 001
105. Question:  Will the Past Performance requirements of L.23 apply to subcontractors? 


Answer:  Yes

106. Question:  When will you supply the Collective Bargaining Agreement as stated in Section J, Attachment J-6 Wage Determinations?


Answer:  See Amendment No. 001.
107. Question:  During the last solicitation, the FAA prudently required all bidders to include a wage escalation in their proposals as follows: 


“L.20.3.3.2.2.  For any fiscal year, the Offeror shall not pay its air traffic control specialists labor rates less than DOL minimum wage as established each year in Attachment 2, Section J-2.  Attachment 2 contains the DOL minimum wage rates for FY 2000.   The Contractor shall include as escalation factor in its labor rates for all option years.  To prevent buy-ins, the Offeror shall include a wage escalation factor that is fair and reasonable for the option years.   If the proposed wage escalation is unreasonably low and/or there is no wage escalation factor, the proposal will be considered unacceptable.   For information purposes only, the Data Research Institute (DRI) wage and salary escalation factor for service employees for all options years FY01-FY-04 is 3.3%.  

The Offerors have the option of using the above escalation factors or using other indices.  When using other indices, the Offeror is required to provide the documentation which supports the proposed wage escalation factors.  If the DOL minimum wage rate exceeds the resultant contract direct labor rate as established under J-7, Attachment 7, FAA will make upward price adjustments to meet the DOL minimum wage rate incorporated under the contract for the fiscal year.  When the DOL minimum wage rate remains the same or below the resultant contract direct labor rate, there shall be no downward adjustment since the Contractor shall pay the air traffic control specialist the rate identified in Section J-7, Attachment 7.  Refer to Clause H.34, “Wage Rate Determination.”

The escalation is prudent and helps ensure wage increases annually, especially when the DOL is slow in updating wage determinations, etc.  We respectfully urge the FAA to require a wage escalation for all bidders and ask that the most recent DRI factor is provided for the next contract term.  

Answer:  See response to Question No. 90.
108. Question:  Audited Financials were originally called for in the last solicitation, but was deleted as a requirement due to many of the Contractors being “private businesses” and not required by law to have audited financials.  Would you please provide the same for this solicitation?

Answer:  See Amendment 001.
109. Question:  Taking in consideration the answer to [ ], what will be the “turn around time” for answering questions to the Solicitation?  Will all questions received be answered in writing?  Will all questions and answers be distributed to all offerors?  Will the turn around time have an effect on the timeline, and if so, what will that effect be?  

Answer:  All question received will be answered in writing and distributed to all offerors unless there is an offeror specify question that involves proprietary information.  See Amendment No. 001 for the last part of Question 109. 

110. Question:  Will the FAA/ATO give latitude for using old/existing routing symbols for specific offices within the FAA, considering the ongoing reorganization of the ATO?


Answer:  Yes

111. Question:  Is the FAA/ATO considering restructuring the FCT areas either now or during the contract period, to coincide with the terminal service areas now being used by the ATO, i.e, Western, Central and Eastern Service Areas? 

Answer:  At the present time, the FAA is not currently considering restructuring the FCT areas to coincide with the Terminal Service Areas.
112. Question:  Section B, as posted on the FAA web site, is set up to print in landscape format. Can Section B be submitted in portrait format to reduce the number of pages submitted? Note that such a change will change the page numbers.

Answer.  Section B may be submitted in portrait format. The page numbers will change, however, the review of your response will be guided by the associated CLINs.

113. Question:  What are the operating hours for Denton, Texas (CLIN 0278)? The hours are noted as TBD in the SIR.

Answer:  See Amendment No. 001. 

114. Question: McKeller-Sipes Regional in Jackson, Tennessee (CLIN 264) has been listed twice in Section J-3. It was listed both with a CBA and as a separate line item with a DOL wage determination. Which is correct?

Answer: McKeller-Sipes Regional in Jackson, Tennessee is listed in Section J-6 only once and as a CBA site.  

115. Question:  At Stewart Airport in New York, the RFP Attachment J, page J-10, Hours of operation are divided between FAA funds and State funds. Please address how the contractor will contract with the state to bill for hours worked
Answer: The State and the contractor providing ATC services enter into an agreement. The FAA does not stipulate the language of such an agreement.
